
   

 
 

 

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
Date: Tuesday, 9 October 2018 
 
Time:  10.30 am 
 
Place: LB 31-32 - Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham, NG2 3NG 
 
Councillors are requested to attend the above meeting to transact the following 
business 

 
Corporate Director for Strategy and Resources 
 
Governance Officer: Mark Leavesley   Direct Dial: 0115 876 4302 
 
 

   
1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
 

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
If you need advice on declaring an interest, please contact the 
Governance Officer above, if possible before the day of the meeting 
 

 

3  MINUTES  
Last meeting held 26 June 2018 (for confirmation) 
 

3 - 4 

4  CUMULATIVE IMPACT ASSESSMENT  
Report of Regional Licensing and Policy Manager 
 

5 - 242 

 
 
CITIZENS ATTENDING MEETINGS ARE ASKED TO ARRIVE AT LEAST 15 MINUTES 

BEFORE THE START OF THE MEETING TO BE ISSUED WITH VISITOR BADGES 
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  
 
LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of the meeting held at Loxley House, Station Street, NG2 3NG, on 26 
June 2018 from 10.30 am - 11.10 am 
 
Membership  
Present Absent 
Councillor Brian Grocock (Chair) 
Councillor David Smith (Vice Chair) 
Councillor Cheryl Barnard 
Councillor Gul Nawaz Khan 
Councillor Mohammed Saghir 
Councillor Adele Williams 
Councillor Michael Edwards 
 

Councillor Nicola Heaton 
Councillor Mohammed Ibrahim 
Councillor Corall Jenkins 
Councillor Sue Johnson 
Councillor Dave Liversidge 
Councillor Carole McCulloch 
Councillor Toby Neal 
Councillor Linda Woodings 

 
Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:  
 
Ann Barrett - Legal Advisor to the Committee 
Mark Leavesley - Governance Officer 
Angela Rawson - Regional Licensing and Policy Manager 
 
1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
Councillor Heaton  ) work commitment 
Councillor McCulloch ) 
 

Councillor Jenkins  )  
Councillor Johnson  ) no reason given 
Councillor Woodings ) 
Councillor Neal  - other Council business 
 
2  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 

 
None. 
 
3  MINUTES 

 
The Committee confirmed the minutes of the meeting held on 02 October 2017 as a 
correct record and they were signed by the Chair. 
 
4  DRAFT STATEMENT OF GAMBLING  POLICY 

 
Angela Rawson, Regional Licensing Manager, presented the report for noting, which 
detailed the Council’s new ‘Statement of Gambling Policy’. It was stated that the draft 
Policy was to be submitted to Council on 09 July 2018 for approval to go out for an 8-
week public consultation, followed by re-submission to Council in November 2018 for 
final approval. The Policy would then come into effect on 31 January 2019 for a 3-
year period. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Licensing Committee - 26.06.18 

2 

RESOLVED that the ‘Statement of Gambling Policy’, as detailed in appendix 1, 
and the timescale for implementation, be noted. 
 
5  DRAFT STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY 

 
Angela Rawson, Regional Licensing Manager, presented the report for noting, which 
detailed the Council’s new ‘Statement of Licensing Policy’. It was stated that the draft 
Policy was to be submitted to Council on 09 July 2018 for approval to go out for an 8-
week public consultation, followed by re-submission to Council in November 2018 for 
final approval. The Policy would then come into effect on 07 January 2019 for a 5-
year period. 
 
RESOLVED that the ‘Statement of Licensing Policy’, as detailed in appendix 1, 
and the timescale for implementation, be noted. 
 
6  PROPOSED CUMULATIVE IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

 
Angela Rawson, Regional Licensing Manager, presented the report, which detailed 
the Council’s draft ‘Cumulative Impact Assessment’ (CIA) and informed the 
Committee of a new requirement, under section 5A of the Licensing Act, for it to 
become a statutory, formal publication.  
 
It was stated that the proposal, following receipt of evidence from Nottinghamshire 
Police and the Council’s Community Protection Team, was to retain the current 
Cumulative Impact Zones (of ‘City Centre’ and ‘Berridge, Arboretum and Radford’) 
and release the draft ‘Cumulative Impact Assessment’ for public consultation. 
 
In response to questions, the following was stated: 
 

 a list of streets and property numbers was being compiled to definitively 
identify properties within the ‘Zones’; 
 

 ‘Zones’ cannot be expanded / created pre-emptively, such as prior to a large 
housing development, it has to be done following receipt of a request with 
evidence of a need to expand / include an area. 

 
RESOLVED that 
 
(1) the draft ‘Cumulative Impact Assessment’, as detailed in appendix A, be 

approved for release for an 8-week public consultation period; 
 
(2) following the consultation period, the responses will be submitted to this 

Committee and a final decision made. 
 

Page 4



LICENSING COMMITTEE  - 9 OCTOBER 2018 
   

 Title of paper: Cumulative Impact Assessment 

 
Director: Andrew Errington Wards affected: ALL 

Report author and 
contact details: 
 

Angela Rawson – Regional Licensing & Policy Manager 
Angela.rawson@nottinghamcity.gov.uk  
0115 8761749 
 

Other colleagues who 
have provided input: 

Ann Barrett – Team Leader, Legal Services 
Ann.barrett@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 
0115 8764411 
 

Date of consultation with Portfolio Holder N/A 

 

Relevant Council Plan Key Theme: 

Strategic Regeneration and Development  

Schools  

Planning and Housing  

Community Services  

Energy, Sustainability and Customer  

Jobs, Growth and Transport  

Adults, Health and Community Sector  

Children, Early Intervention and Early Years  

Leisure and Culture  

Resources and Neighbourhood Regeneration  

 

Summary of issues (including benefits to citizens/service users):  
 
This report seeks approval to adopt a new Cumulative Impact Assessment for the City.  A copy of 
the proposed Assessment (Appendix 1) and a summary of those responses, the officer assessment 
of them and amendments made to the draft Assessment (Appendix 2) are attached. 
 

 

Recommendation: 

1 That the Committee approve the Cumulative Impact Assessment at Appendix 1 for publication. 
 

 
1 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
1.1 Historically the Licensing Authority has dealt with issues of cumulative impact through 

its Licensing Policy. Cumulative Impact has now been put on a statutory footing and 
section 5A of the Licensing Act requires the publication of a formal Cumulative 
Impact Assessment  (CIA) which is summarised and reflected in the Authority’s 
Statement of Licensing Policy (the Policy). As the Authority’s current Policy is due for 
review the Statutory Guidance indicates that the Authority’s approach to the issue of 
cumulative impact should be reviewed at the same time. The retention of the existing 
Saturation Zones has been requested, and evidenced, by both Nottinghamshire 
Police and the Council’s Community Protection Team and a draft Cumulative Impact 
Assessment was approved by this Committee for consultation on 26 June 2018. The 
results of the consultation have now been collated and assessed and the CIA 
updated following consideration of those responses. The CIA at Appendix 1 is now 
proposed for publication Page 5

Agenda Item 4

mailto:Angela.rawson@nottinghamcity.gov.uk
mailto:Ann.barrett@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


 
2 BACKGROUND (INCLUDING OUTCOMES OF CONSULTATION) 
 
2.1 As outlined above and in the report to this Committee of 26 June 2018, the issue of 

Cumulative Impact has now been put on a statutory footing.  Should a Licensing 
Authority wish to publish a Cumulative Impact Assessment for identified areas where 
concerns have been raised in relation to crime and disorder, public safety, public 
nuisance and/or the protection of children from harm, it must first consult on its 
proposals.  

 
2.2 A consultative draft Cumulative Impact Assessment was approved by this Committee 

on 26 June 2018 and consultation took place between 16 July 2018 and 9 September 
2018 with both public and statutory consultees. A summary of consultation 
responses, the officer assessment of them and amendments made to the draft CIA as 
a result of them appears at Appendix 2. 

 
2.3 During the consultation period additional evidence was received from the Police in 

relation to the proposed CIA.  This information was made publicly available on the 
City Council’s website on 1 August 2018 as part of the consultation documentation 
and those who had already submitted consultation responses by this stage were 
notified of the additional evidence to give them the opportunity to comment on it. 

 
2.4  There have been some responses from specific premises with individual concerns 

and their points will be addressed through correspondence as appropriate. 
 
2.5 There has been a response from Public Health England (who are a statutory 

consultee) and whilst it is recognised that Public Health is not a licensing objective, 
their comments have been seen as relevant to this consultation and have therefore 
been included within this CIA. 
 

2.3 The CIA is substantially in the same form as the consultative draft subject to the 
amendments outlined in Appendix 2 and some minor points of clarification and 
grammatical and numerical alterations. A number of consultation responses raised 
general issues about the effect of such policies being to stifle investment and diversity 
of offer and leading to the imposition of inappropriate and numerous conditions. The 
CIA has been amended in paragraphs 1.8 and 1.9 to clarify that it is not the intention 
of the CIA (or any resultant Policy) to act in that way and also to clarify the 
responsibilities of both applicants and Responsible Authorities. 
 

2.4 If approved and published, the CIA is required to be summarised in the Authority’s 
revised Licensing Policy which will be placed before Council for adoption in 
November. The CIA will remain in force for a period of three years from publication 
unless reviewed/replaced sooner. 

 
3 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED IN MAKING RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Not creating a Cumulative Impact Assessment which would mean that the Authority 

took no defined approach to Cumulative Impact in two areas previously designated in 
its’ Licensing Policy as Cumulative Impact Zones. 

 
4 FINANCE COLLEAGUE COMMENTS  
 
4.1 The statutory fees levied for the regime are intended to cover the cost of the 

creation and consultation of a Cumulative Impact Assessment. Page 6



 
5  LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT COLLEAGUE COMMENTS 
 
5.1  As indicated elsewhere in the body of the report the issue of Cumulative Impact now 

has a statutory basis. Section 5A of the Act now allows an Authority to publish a CIA 
“stating that the licensing authority considers that the number of relevant 
authorisations in respect of premises in one or more parts of its area described in 
the assessment is such that it is likely that it would be inconsistent with the 
authority’s duty under section 4(1) to grant any further relevant authorisations in 
respect of premises in those parts”. 

 
5.2   The statutory Guidance has also been revised and indicates that: 
 

 Cumulative Impact is the potential impact on the promotion of the licensing 
objectives of a number of licensed premises concentrated in one area; 
 

 A CIA may be published to help an authority to limit the number or types of 
licence applications granted in areas where there is evidence to show that that 
the number or density of licensed premises in the area is having a cumulative 
impact and leading to problems which are undermining the licensing objectives; 
 

 A CIA must be summarised in the Statement of Licensing Policy; 
 

 The CIA must include a statement  saying that the licensing authority considers 
that the number of relevant authorisations in respect of premises in one or more 
parts of its area described in the assessment is such that it is likely that it would 
be inconsistent with the authority’s duty to promote the licensing objectives; 
 

 The licensing authority must set out the evidential basis for its opinion; 
 

 Evidence of cumulative impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives 
needs to relate to the relevant problems identified in the specific area(s) to be 
covered by the CIA; 
 

 The CIA should also be considered alongside local planning policy and other 
relevant factors which may assist in mitigating cumulative impact of licensed 
premises; 
 

 The steps to be followed in considering whether to publish a CIA include: 
 

o Identifying concern about crime and disorder; public safety; public nuisance 
or protection of children from harm in a particular location.  

o Considering whether there is good evidence that crime and disorder or 
nuisance are occurring, or whether there are activities which pose a threat to 
public safety or the protection of children from harm.  

o If there is evidence that such problems are occurring, identifying whether 
these problems are being caused by the customers of licensed premises, or 
that cumulative impact is imminent.  

o Identifying the boundaries of the area where problems are occurring (this can 
involve mapping where the problems occur and identifying specific streets or 
localities where such problems arise).  

 

5.3 The Guidance also indicates that through the use of CIAs the licensing authority is 
setting down “a strong statement of intent” about its approach to considering 

Page 7



applications for the grant of premises licences or club premises certificates in the 
area however, while the evidence underpinning a CIA should generally be suitable as 
the basis for a decision to refuse an application or impose conditions it does not 
change the fundamental way that decisions are made under the Act. 

 
5.4 Under the terms of the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) 

Regulations 2000 and the Licensing Act 2003 the consideration and publication of 
CIAs is a matter which is in the remit of the Licensing Committee. The Committee 
should therefore consider the issues identified in 5.1 and 5.2 above in determining if 
it feels it appropriate to publish the CIA .  

 
Ann Barrett, Team Leader, Legal Services 2 - October 2018 

 
6 STRATEGIC ASSETS & PROPERTY COLLEAGUE COMMENTS  
 
6.1 None. 
 
7 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT  
 
7.1 Has the equality impact of the proposals in this report been assessed? 
 
 No         
 
 The Cumulative Impact Assessment has been prepared to enable fairness to all 

parties. 
 
8 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS OTHER THAN PUBLISHED WORKS OR 

THOSE DISCLOSING CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 

8.1 None. 
 
9 PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO IN COMPILING THIS REPORT 
 
9.1 Licensing Act 2003 
 Section 182 Guidance 
 Policing & Crime Act 2017 
 Nottingham Crime & Drugs Partnership ‘Respect for Nottingham Survey 2017’ 

Page 8



 1 

Nottingham City Council 
 
Responses to consultation on Cumulative Impact Assessment (2019) 
 
Chapter 1 – Introduction 
 
 

Ref 
No. 

Policy or 
Paragraph 
Number 

Summary of Respondents 
Comments 

Authorities Appraisal of Comments Authority’s Response 
with regard to 
Statement of Policy 

3 1.2 Clarity required on whether or not 
variations will be included in the 
same process as new applications 

There is inconsistency between the Act 
and the Statutory Guidance on this 
subject with the Act stating that  it relates 
to the number of “Relevant 
Authorisations” defined as  Premises 
Licences and Club Premises Certificates 
and the guidance inferring that CIAs may 
apply to variations  

Reference to variations 
removed to be consistent 
with the Act 

3 1.6 Preference for prior consultation 
with groups such as UK Hospitality 
and BII 

Noted – representatives of licensees 
were included in the consultation process 

No changes made 

8 1.9 Question decision making process 
and whether applications are truly 
on their own merits or whether 
some premises just accept 
stringent conditions to get a licence 

Noted - It is incumbent upon operators to 
consider the effect of any proposed 
condition before accepting it or to  
mediate where necessary with the 
relevant RA if they do not feel the 
condition is appropriate.  The Licensing 
Authority’s discretion is not engaged 
other than where there is disagreement 
between the parties which cannot be 
resolved. 

 
Wording of 1.9 amended 

9 1.7 Where is there any evidence 
relating to Club Premises 
Certificates  

The Legislation and Guidance refer to 
both Premises Licences and Club 
Premises Certificates as being “Relevant 
Authorisations” therefore it is not intended 
that the Cumulative Impact Assessment 

No changes made 

P
age 9



 2 

(CIA) distinguish between the two types 

9 1.8 Repeats statement of 1.8 of the 
CIA  and queries the evidence in 
support 

The CIA is not intended to stifle 
commercial operations but can be used 
as a tool to manage the Night Time 
Economy.  References to restaurants etc 
are given as examples of premises which 
have a lesser impact, a point which 
seems to be agreed by the respondent.  
In relation to premises, there is a healthy 
turnover of existing licences which itself 
refreshes the style and choice of venue 
as existing operators change themes as 
customer trends are mirrored.  

 
Wording of 1.8 amended 

9 1.9 Question decision making process 
and whether applications are truly 
on their own merits or whether 
some premises just accept 
stringent conditions to get a licence 

Noted - identical to respondent 8 
comments. 
It is incumbent upon operators to 
consider the effect of any proposed 
condition before accepting it or to  
mediate where necessary with the 
relevant RA if they do not feel the 
condition is appropriate.  The Licensing 
Authority’s discretion is not engaged 
other than where there is disagreement 
between the parties which cannot be 
resolved. 

 
Wording of 1.9 amended 

9 1.10 1)What are the strategies and 
policies in relation to regeneration, 
how is a policy which effectively 
excludes any new drink led 
business consistent with 
regeneration 
2)have licensees been consulted 

The CIA is felt to be consistent with other 
Council Policies 
 
 
 
 
A full consultation has been carried out in 
line with legislative requirements, 
including licence holders 

No changes made 
 
 
 
 
 
No changes made 

 
 

P
age 10



 3 

Chapter 2 – Statement of Evidence - General 
 

Ref 
No. 

Policy or 
Paragraph 
Number 

Summary of Respondents 
Comments 

Authorities Appraisal of 
Comments 

Authority’s Response 
with regard to Statement 
of Policy 

7 2.8 Request inclusion of a paragraph 
setting out Public Health’s view in 
support CIA 

Noted  Added to CIA after 2.8 and 
subsequent paragraphs 
renumbered 

8 2.3 Comment regarding refreshing of 
diversity in range of leisure venues 

Noted  Amendments made to 
paragraph 1.2,  1.8 and 2.3 
of the CIA 

8 2.4 It is disingenuous to use the 
increase in student 
accommodation as a justification 
for the CIA  

Noted – the reference in the CIA is 
not about planning policy and 
student accommodation but the 
impact that the influx of students 
travelling into the city has on the 
ability to manage the Night Time 
Economy (NTE) in general 

No changes made 

8 2.5 Action should be taken against off-
licences (pre-loading) 

Noted – The Berridge, Arboretum 
and Radford CIA is designed to deal 
specifically with managing the off 
licence trade in an area with a high 
density of students and a street 
drinking culture. 
The City Centre CIA deals with both 
on and off licences and therefore 
does address off licences within the 
City 

No changes made 

9 2.3 Comment regarding refreshing of 
diversity in range of leisure venues 

Noted - identical to respondent 8 
comments. 

Amendments made to 
paragraph 1.2, 1.8 and 2.3 
of the CIA 

9 2.4 It is disingenuous to use the 
increase in student 
accommodation as a justification 
for the CIA 

Noted - identical to respondent 8 
comments. 
The reference is not about planning 
policy and student accommodation 
but the impact that the influx of 

No changes made 

P
age 11



 4 

students travelling into the city has 
on the ability to manage the Night 
Time Economy (NTE) in general 

9 2.5 Action should be taken against off-
licences (pre-loading) 

Noted identical to respondent 8 
comments. 
Noted – The Berridge, Arboretum 
and Radford CIA is designed to deal 
specifically with managing the off 
licence trade in an area with a high 
density of students and a street 
drinking culture. 
The City Centre CIA deals with both 
on and off licences and therefore 
does address off licences within the 
City 

No changes made 

 
9 

2.7 Reference to terminology when 
referring to statistical data 

Noted – Police reference particular 
impact to first year students, away 
from home, experiencing what the 
City has to offer 

Amended wording of 2.7 

9 2.12 Where is evidential basis for 
statement 
 

Noted – Police references relate to 
pre-loading people who come out 
into the City Centre later already 
being intoxicated. Drinks purchased 
whist out increase their level of 
intoxication making some people 
more prone to engage in violence. 

No changes made 

 
Chapter 3 – Statement of Evidence – City Centre Saturation Zone 

Ref 
No. 

Policy or 
Paragraph 
Number 

Summary of Respondents 
Comments 

Authorities Appraisal of 
Comments 

Authority’s Response 
with regard to Statement 
of Policy 

3 3.2 1) Query number of premises 
quoted and whether the figure 
relates to live permissions or 
trading premises? 
 

1) The number of trading premises 
will fluctuate  and is not something 
which is necessarily within the 
Licensing Authority’s knowledge.  
The legislation on Cumulative 

No changes made 
 
 
 
 

P
age 12



 5 

 
 
 
 
 
2) and has the number of 398 
increased from 2014 
 
 
 
 
3) also how many people have 
been put off from applying 
because of existing Zone 

Impact relates to the number of 
Premises Licences and Club 
Premises Certificates in general 
 
 
2) the figure of 398 related to the 
Police City Centre beat – further 
evidence has been received from 
the Police showing that the figure as 
of April 2018 is 350 for the purposes 
of the CIA alone.   
3) Quantity unknown to the 
Licensing Authority 

 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 amended to reflect data 
from second statement of 
AA relative to proposed 
area rather than the City 
Beat area 
 
No changes made 
 
 
 
 

3 3.7 Query regarding police evidence of 
‘violent crime’ recording figures, 
what offences are being 
categorised as violence and 
whether those crimes are alcohol 
related 

Further evidence received from the 
Police shows two tables, one which 
shows violence figures (GBH to 
assault without injury and 
harassment) whilst a second table 
shows violence offences with alcohol 
markers which appear to have 
increased within the CIA  

No changed made 
 
 
 
 
 

3 3.10 Suggest use of BID revenue for 
low level ASB and cleaning 

This is not within the  remit of CIA 
but noted and referred to BID for 
consideration 

No changes made 

3 3.17 whether it is sensible to permit 
changes of use from  commercial 
to residential and suggesting that 
they have caused the problem 

This is a matter for the Planning 
Authority and not within the remit of 
this consultation 

No changes made 

8 3.6 Queries the comparison of crime 
levels with other cities 

Benchmarking is a standard tool 
used in statistical data analysis and 
in this instance shows that 
Nottingham has a higher rate of 

No changes made 

P
age 13



 6 

violent crime, comparatively., 
Without a CIA there is a likelihood 
this would be higher.   
Nottingham is a core city and a 
comparison with other core cities 
that face similar issues allows a 
reality check and measure of our 
effectiveness in dealing with violent 
crime. The weight given to this is a 
matter for the decision makers 
 

8 3.7 Method of collation of crime figures 
has recently changed with a result 
that all towns and cities have seen 
an increase in their crime figures 

The figures demonstrated in the 
consultation document shows 
comparison between days of the 
week, demonstrating that there is a 
higher percentage of reported 
violence on Thurs, Fri, and Sat than 
there is the rest of the week. 
 

No changes made 

8 3.11 Interpretation of Respect for 
Nottingham Survey can reflect not 
supporting the CIA 

This is an element of interpretation 
as with all data sets. 

No changes made 

8 3.16-3.19 No evidence to determine the 
geographical  area where noise 
from licensed premises is creating 
a nuisance and Environmental 
Health have powers to address 
such issues 

Consider amendment to paragraph Amendments made to 3.19  

9 3.6 Queries the comparison of crime 
levels with other cities 

Noted - identical to respondent 8 
comments. 
Benchmarking is a standard tool 
used in statistical data analysis and 
in this instance shows that 
Nottingham has a higher rate of 
violent crime, comparatively., 
Without a CIA there is a likelihood 

No changes made 

P
age 14



 7 

this would be higher.  
Nottingham is a core city and a 
comparison with other core cities 
that face similar issues allows a 
reality check and measure of our 
effectiveness in dealing with violent 
crime. The weight given to this is a 
matter for the decision makers.  
 

9 3.14 Noise Noted  Amendments to Paragraph 
3.19  
 

9 3.7 Method of collation of crime figures Noted - identical to respondent 8 
comments. 
The figures demonstrated in the 
consultation document shows 
comparison between days of the 
week, demonstrating that there is a 
higher percentage of reported 
violence on Thurs, Fri, and Sat than 
there is the rest of the week. 
 

No changes made 

9 3.11 Interpretation of Respect for 
Nottingham Survey can reflect not 
supporting the CIA 

Noted - identical to respondent 8 
comments. 
This is an element of interpretation 
as with all data sets. 
 

No changes made 

9 3.16-3.19 No evidence to determine the 
geographical  area where noise 
from licensed premises is creating 
a nuisance and Environmental 
Health have powers to address 
such issues  

Noted - identical to respondent 8 
comments. 
 
 

Amendments made to 3.19 

 
Chapter 4 – Statement of Evidence – Berridge, Arboretum & Radford Saturation Zone Services 
 

P
age 15



 8 

No comments made to this section 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chapter 5 – Other Control Measures in Use 
 

Ref 
No. 

Policy or 
Paragraph 
Number 

Summary of Respondents 
Comments 

Authorities Appraisal of 
Comments 

Authority’s Response 
with regard to Statement 
of Policy 

8 5.5 City Centre Time & Place Plan 
(TPP) identifies Canalside as a 
late night leisure quarter but 
developments will be restricted 

At the time of the Licensing Policy 
review in 2014 the TPP was itself 
being developed and the Local 
Planning Authority (LPA) made 
comments in response to that 
consultation requesting a redrawing 
of the boundary relating to the Canal 
Quarter. At that time evidence 
showed that crime and disorder 
levels remained high in that area  
and had in fact increased and the 
boundaries were not therefore 
amended. The TPP subsequently 
went through its own approval 
process although it does not have 
the status of a Development Plan 
Document. In addition the  LPA has 
been developing its Part 2 Local 
Plan (Land And Planning Policy or 
LAPP) which formalises planning 
policy for the various Quarters albeit 
that the LAPP still has to undergo 
formal examination and adoption. 
The LPA as a RA has not made any 

No changes made 

P
age 16



 9 

comments on the CIA and the CIA is 
felt  to be consistent with both the 
existing Local Plan and LAPP. 

8 5.8 Feel that no evidence has been 
submitted by the LPA to justify the 
statement in the paragraph 

These comments are felt to be 
consistent with the LPA’s general 
approach as set out for example in 
the commentary to policy SH6 of the 
examination submission version of 
the LAPP 
The TPP is not a Development Plan 
Document and the examination 
submission version of the LAPP 
indicates that whilst leisure food and 
drink and entertainment uses are 
important close to the canal, the 
main focus is on business and 
employment.  The CIA is therefore 
clearly felt to be consistent with  
planning policy contained in public 
documents 
 

No changes made 

8 5.15 Conditions act as a deterrent and 
are more than can be justified 

Noted - it is incumbent upon 
operators to consider the effect of 
any proposed condition before 
accepting it or to  mediate where 
necessary with the relevant RA if 
they do not feel the condition is 
appropriate.  The Licensing 
Authority’s discretion is not engaged 
other than where there is 
disagreement between the parties 
which cannot be resolved.. 

1.9 amended 

8 5.24 Possible risk of losing Purple Flag 
if lack of a diverse night time 
economy 

Noted – The City Council actively 
encourages diversity and as such 
supports a wide range of activities 
and provisions including themed 

1.8 amended 

P
age 17



 10 

premises, all of which operate in one 
form or another throughout the 
trading period as defined by Purple 
Flag.   Diversity is only one theme 
included in the Purple Flag 
Assessment process and is judged 
on the whole package the City has 
to offer.  The Police fully support the 
Purple Flag Scheme and are of the 
opinion that there is a diverse night 
time economy in order for use to 
retain Purple Flag status. 

8 5.25 Terminology ‘broad consensus’ Noted  Amended wording of 5.25 

9 5.25 Terminology ‘broad consensus’ Noted - identical to respondent 8 
comments. 
 

Amended wording of 5.25 

9 
 

5.5 City Centre Time & Place Plan 
(TPP) identifies Canalside as a 
late night leisure quarter but 
developments will be restricted 

Noted - identical to respondent 8 
comments. 
 
At the time of the Licensing Policy 
review in 2014 the TPP was itself 
being developed and the Local 
Planning Authority (LPA) made 
comments in response to the 2014 
consultation requesting a redrawing 
of the boundary relating to the Canal 
Quarter. At that time evidence 
showed that crime and disorder 
levels remained high in that area  
and had in fact increased and the 
boundaries were not therefore 
amended. The TPP subsequently 
went through its own approval 
process although it does not have 
the status of a Development Plan 
Document. In addition the  LPA has 

No changes made P
age 18



 11 

been developing its Part 2 Local 
Plan (Land And Planning Policy or 
LAPP) which formalises planning 
policy for the various Quarters albeit 
that the LAPP still has to undergo 
formal examination and adoption. 
The LPA as a RA has not made any 
comments on the CIA and the CIA is 
felt  to be consistent with both the 
existing Local Plan and LAPP. 

9 5.8 Feel that no evidence has been 
submitted by the LPA to justify the 
statement in the paragraph 

Noted - identical to respondent 8 
comments. 
 
These comments are felt to be 
consistent with the LPA’s general 
approach as set out for example in 
the commentary to policy SH6 of the 
examination submission version of 
the LAPP 
The TPP is not a Development Plan 
Document and  the examination 
submission version of the LAPP 
indicates that whilst leisure food and 
drink and entertainment uses are 
important close to the canal, the 
main focus is on business and 
employment.  The CIA is therefore 
clearly felt to be consistent with  
planning policy contained in public 
documents 
 

No changes made 

9 5.15 Conditions act as a deterrent and 
are more than can be justified 

Noted - identical to respondent 8 
comments. 
it is incumbent upon operators to 
consider the effect of any proposed 
condition before accepting it or to  

1.9 amended 

P
age 19



 12 

mediate where necessary with the 
relevant RA if they do not feel the 
condition is appropriate.  The 
Licensing Authority’s discretion is 
not engaged other than where there 
is disagreement between the parties 
which cannot be resolved.. 
 
 

9 5.24 Possible risk of losing Purple Flag 
if lack of a diverse night time 
economy 

Noted - identical to respondent 8 
comments. 
  
The City Council actively 
encourages diversity and as such 
supports a wide range of activities 
and provisions including themed 
premises, all of which operate in one 
form or another throughout the 
trading period as defined by Purple 
Flag.   Diversity is only one theme 
included in the Purple Flag 
Assessment process and is judged 
on the whole package the City has 
to offer. The Police fully support the 
Purple Flag Scheme and are of the 
opinion that there is a diverse night 
time economy in order for use to 
retain Purple Flag status. 

1.8 amended 

     

 
Chapter 6 – Conclusion 
 

Ref 
No. 

Policy or 
Paragraph 
Number 

Summary of Respondents 
Comments 

Authorities Appraisal of 
Comments 

Authority’s Response 
with regard to Statement 
of Policy  

8 6.2 Accept applications  have been Reference on page 20 refers to No changes made 

P
age 20



 13 

granted within the saturation zone 
but these have been food led and 
not sustainable 
 
Statistics do not identify crime has 
arisen because of licensed 
premises and include premises 
which are not licensed 

research conducted on addresses 
as opposed to on street offences. 
Some premises are high capacity 
vertical drinking establishments and 
as such the proportion of violent 
offences is relatively low when 
considering footfall through the 
venues. It would be wrong to have a 
CIA just in these areas as this would 
not tackle the wider problem.  
 
 

9 6.2 Accept applications  have been 
granted within the saturation zone 
but these have been food led and 
not sustainable 
 
 

Noted. 
The Licensing Authority considered 
each application on its merit and is 
not responsible for the success or 
failure of a commercial enterprise  
 
 

No changes made 

 
 
 
Chapter 7 - Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – Map of City Centre Saturation Zone  
 
No comments made to this section 
 
Appendix 2 – Map of Berridge, Arboretum & Radford Saturation Zone 
 
No comments made to this section 
 
 
Appendix 3 – Inspector Anwaar Ahmed, Nottinghamshire Police 
 

Ref Policy or Summary of Respondents Authorities Appraisal of Authority’s Response 

P
age 21



 14 

No. Paragraph 
Number 

Comments Comments with regard to Statement 
of Policy  

4  This respondent  has introduced 
various measure to reduce 
cumulative impact and should not 
be categorised with other types of 
premises which cause problems. 
CIA has not worked and should be 
targeted at specific types of 
premises (early doors trading 
which sell high quality high ABV) 
Others measures are available 
and the CIA stifles growth 

CIA is relevant to the whole of the 
defined area, not just one premise 
or type of premise.   
 
It is not the purpose of the CIA to 
stifle growth and applications have 
been granted within it  
 
Other conditions/suggestions are 
noted but not all are practicable or 
compliant with the Act/Guidance 

 
Amendments made to 
paragraphs 1.8  and 1.9 
with regard to diversity and 
not stifling growth 

     

     

 
Appendix 4 – Evidence – David Scothern, Principal Enforcement Officer, Community Protection 
 
No comments made to this section 
 
Appendix 5 – Evidence – Jenny Guiste, Principal Enforcement Officer, Community Protection  
 

Ref 
No. 

Policy or 
Paragraph 
Number 

Summary of Respondents 
Comments 

Authorities Appraisal of 
Comments 

Authority’s Response 
with regard to Statement 
of Policy 

4  1)Concern premises quoted in 
evidence sell high strength 
cocktails and the possible effect on 
premises later on the NTE after 
early doors trading 
2) Perceives current CIP not to be 
working as such venues have 
increased 

Noted - Each application dealt with 
on its merits.   
 
 
Noted - Each application dealt with 
on its merits.   

No changes made 
 
 
 
 
No changes made 

 
 

    

 

P
age 22



 15 

Appendix 6 – Evidence – Richard Taylor, Environmental Health & Safer Places Manager, Community Protection  
 

Ref 
No. 

Policy or 
Paragraph 
Number 

Summary of Respondents 
Comments 

Authorities Appraisal of 
Comments 

Authority’s Response 
with regard to Statement 
of Policy  

10 6.1 Paragraph indicates that despite 
previous Cumulative Impact Policy 
improvements have not occurred 
thereby undermining renewal 

Noted – existing Cumulative Impact 
Policy has been beneficial in 
managing the Night Time Economy 
and any proposed CIA will continue 
to be used (if approved) as one 
method of managing the Night Time 
Economy. 

No changes made 

 
 
 
 
 
Appendix 7 – Strategies, Policies & other published documents given regard  
 
No comments made to this section 
 
General Comments 
 

Ref 
No. 

Policy or 
Paragraph 
Number 

Summary of Respondents 
Comments 

Authorities Appraisal of 
Comments 

Authority’s Response 
with regard to 
Statement of Policy  

1 All General comments about 
business charges and an option 
for banning people from the City 
Centre if they cause nuisance 
and/or damage. 

Noted No changes made 

2 All No comments.  Request for 
notification of increase in 
numbers of premises 

Noted No changes made 

3 All Consider effect on restrictive 
policies to ensure diverse NTE 

Noted No changes made 

P
age 23



 16 

4 All 1)comments around positive 
moves taken by this respondent 
to support LGBT+ community in 
the NTE 
 
 
 
 
 
2)Question strength of CIA and 
its utilisation to limit premises 
3)perception of stifled economic 
growth and request that 
responsible operators with any 
CIA are allowed to make 
alterations to their hours and 
conditions if they have shown 
due diligence 
4)suggested alternatives to CIP 

Noted – most comments in this 
submission is relevant to one 
premises whereas the CIA is by 
nature more general it its 
approach however RAs will 
consider each application on its 
individual merits as will the 
Authority when its discretion is 
engaged 
Noted – each application is 
considered on its merit 
 
Noted – each application is 
considered on its merit and 
Responsible Authorities would 
normally look at the history of a 
premises when considering an 
application 
 
Noted and considered 

No changes made 
 
 
No changes made 
 
No changes made 
 
 
 
 
 
 
No changes made 

5 All 1) General overview of company 
insight and responsibility 
including support for initiatives 
such as Drinkaware. 
 
2) Concerns regarding 
dissuasive effect of CIAs in 
general and promote stagnation 
in the NTE 
 
 
3) Concern regarding the 
amount of conditions being 
added to licences which can 
cause operators to fail 

Noted 
 
 
 
 
Noted – however the alternative 
perspective is that the benefit of 
the CIA is to improve 
management of the NTE and 
safety within it. 
 
 
Noted – it is incumbent upon 
operators to consider the effect of 
any proposed condition before 
accepting it or to  mediate where 

No changes made 
 
 
 
 
 
No changes made 
 
 
 
 
 
1.9 amended 

P
age 24



 17 

necessary with the relevant RA if 
they do not feel the condition is 
appropriate.  The Licensing 
Authority’s discretion is not 
engaged other than where there 
is disagreement between the 
parties which cannot be resolved. 

6 All Asks for a report which was 
commissioned by the PCC, BID 
and Poppleston Allen to be 
considered as part of the CIA 
consultation  

It is not known what action the 
PCC will take on this report and 
in any event the PCC is not the 
Responsible Authority.  The CIA 
and any resultant policy has been 
requested by the Police (who are 
a Responsible Authority and the 
body which the Statutory 
Guidance indicates should be the 
main source of advice when 
considering matters of crime and 
disorder).  The CIA is based on 
evidence supplied and supported 
by the police. 

No changes made 

8 All 1)General concerns whether the 
CIA fulfils the requirements of 
Home Office Guidance 
 
 
 
 
2)creation of City Centre Forum 

Noted – CIA and the evidence 
produced therein identifies and 
supports the proposals contained 
within the CIA  
 
 
Noted and referenced for future 
option 

No changes made 

9 All 1)the CIA does not demonstrate 
clearly that there is any need for 
a cumulative impact policy nor 
do they show that the policy has 
had any success 
 
 

Noted – Police evidence refers to 
changes in crime statistics and 
shows a particular increase in 
violence offences with an alcohol 
marker over the last two 
recording periods. 
Noted – Police evidence clearly 

No changes made 
 
 
 
 
 
1.8 and 1.9 amended 

P
age 25



 18 

2)there is no imagination used 
in simply saying ‘no’ as most 
Licensing Committees do to 
new projects. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3)consideration should be given 
to splitting the policy to reflect 
support for the on trade and less 
for the off trade. 
 
 

shows that there is a high level of 
applications which are granted 
without the need for a hearing.  
When those matters are put 
before a Licensing Panel, 
applications are considered with 
reference to the effect on one or 
more of the 4 Licensing 
Objectives and some applications 
have been granted inside the 
existing saturation zone. The LPA 
does not “simply say no” 
The Licensing Authority and 
Responsible Authorities give 
consideration to all parts of the 
application and possible effects 
as part of the application process  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
No changes made 

10 All 1)Proposed CIA does not 
support ‘each application on its 
merits’ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Noted – Proposed CIA actively 
supports consideration of a 
diversity of applications. It is 
incumbent upon operators to 
consider the effect of any 
proposed condition before 
accepting it or to  mediate where 
necessary with the relevant RA if 
they do not feel the condition is 
appropriate.  The Licensing 
Authority’s discretion is not 
engaged other than where there 
is disagreement between the 
parties which cannot be resolved  
 
CIA is only one tool being used to 
manage the NTE 

No changes made 
 
1.8 and 1.9 amended 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
No changes made 

P
age 26



 19 

 
2)CIA relied upon to solve all 
problems. 

 

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Nottingham CIAv7AMR  

1 
 

 

 

 

 

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 

 

 

 

Cumulative Impact Assessment 

October 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 29



Nottingham CIAv7AMR  

2 
 

ection      Contents      Page number  

 

1 Introduction 

 

2 Statement of Evidence - General 

 

3 Statement of Evidence - City Centre Saturation Zone 

 Crime & Disorder 

 Anti-Social Behaviour 

 Noise & Nuisance 

 

4 Statement of Evidence Berridge, Arboretum & Radford Saturation Zone 

 Crime & Disorder 

 Anti-Social Behaviour 

 

5 Other Control Measures in Use 

 

6 Conclusion 

 

7 Appendices 

1) Map of City Centre Saturation Zone 

2) Map of Berridge, Arboretum & Radford Saturation Zone 

3) Evidence - Inspector Anwaar Ahmed, Nottinghamshire Police 

dated 16 May 2018 and 26 July 2018 

4) Evidence of Inspector Robert Wilson, Nottinghamshire Police 

5) Evidence – David Scothern, Principal Enforcement Officer, 

Community Protection 

6) Evidence – Jennifer Guiste, Principal Enforcement Officer, 

Community Protection 

7) Evidence – Richard Taylor, Environmental Health & Safer Places 

Manager, Community Protection 

8) Strategies, Policies & other published documents given regard 

 

  

Page 30



Nottingham CIAv7AMR  

3 
 

1) Introduction 

1.1 Cumulative impact is the potential impact on the promotion of the licensing 

 objectives of a number of licensed premises concentrated in one area. 

 

1.2 A Licensing Authority may, in appropriate circumstances, publish a 

Cumulative Impact Assessment (CIA) to help limit the number or types of 

licence applications granted in areas where there is evidence to show that the 

number or density of licensed premises in the area is having a cumulative 

impact and leading to problems which are undermining the licensing 

objectives.  CIAs are relevant to applications for further Premises Licences 

and  Club Premises Certificates. . 

 

1.3 Historically, Nottingham City Council has had concerns about Cumulative 

 Impact within its area since the Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) came into force. 

 This resulted in the declaration of the City Centre Saturation Zone in July 

2005  and the Berridge, Arboretum, and Radford Saturation Zone in January 2014. 

 The Authority’s various Statements of Licensing Policy created policies to 

 address cumulative impact in those areas which related to all premises 

 licensed to sell or supply alcohol for consumption both on and off the 

premises  within the City Centre Saturation Zone and to all premises licensed to 

sell or  supply alcohol for consumption off the premises within the Berridge, 

 Arboretum, and Radford Saturation Zone. 

 

1.4 Following the introduction of section 5A of the Act Cumulative Impact has 

been  placed on a statutory footing and, in accordance with the Section 182 

Statutory  Guidance the Authority’s previous approach and policies have been 

reviewed.  

 
1.5 Nottingham City Council received evidence from the following which has led 

 to the preparation of this Cumulative Impact Assessment:- 

 Inspector Anwaar Ahmed, Nottinghamshire Police, dated 16 May 2018 and 

26 July 2018 – Appendix 3 

 Evidence of Inspector Robert Wilson, Nottinghamshire Police – Appendix 

4 

 David Scothern, Principal Enforcement Officer, Community Protection – 

Appendix 5 

Page 31



Nottingham CIAv7AMR  

4 
 

 Jennifer Guiste, Principal Enforcement Officer, Community Protection – 

Appendix 6 

 Richard Taylor, Environmental Health & Safer Places Manager, Community 

Protection, Appendix 7 

 It has also had regard to the Strategies, Policies and other published 

documents listed in Appendix 8 

1.6 Based on the evidence contained within this Assessment and for the reasons 

 outlined below the Authority considers that the number of Relevant 

 Authorisations in respect of:- 

1. Premises licensed to sell or supply alcohol for consumption both on and off 

the premises in the City Centre Saturation Zone, and  

2. Premises licensed to sell or supply alcohol for consumption off the premises  

in the Berridge, Arboretum & Radford Saturation Zone  

 

 is such that it is likely that it would be inconsistent with the Authority’s duty 

 under section 4(1) of the Act to grant any further Relevant Authorisations in 

 respect of premises of the relevant type in those Areas.  

 

1.7 In both cases a Relevant Authorisation means a Premises Licence or a Club 

 Premises Certificate under the Act. 

 

1.8 The creation of this CIA does not prevent any person from making an 

application for a Relevant Authorisation  and each application will continue to 

be dealt with on it’s own merits having regard to the contents of this 

document. The Authority wishes to ensure and maintain a diverse range of 

leisure and entertainment opportunities within the City but needs to balance 

that around the impact arising from having a large number of licensed 

premises concentrated in an area. It  is not the purpose of CIAs to act as a 

total ban on growth or the licensing of premises which will not add to 

concerns around cumulative impact.  The Authority recognises that the 

operating and business style of a premise affects the impact it may have. 

Restaurants, cafes and predominantly seated premises can often have a 

lesser impact than pubs, nightclubs and high capacity vertical drinking 

establishments. 

 

1.9 Nothing in this Assessment should be regarded or interpreted as an indication 

that any requirement of law may be overridden; each application will be 

considered and treated on its own merits.  Generally however, where the 

Page 32



Nottingham CIAv7AMR  

5 
 

Licensing Authority’s discretion is engaged, applications for Relevant 

Authorisations will be refused unless it is satisfied that the promotion of the 

licensing objectives will not be undermined.  However, no restrictive controls 

will be introduced or imposed in respect of an application unless they are felt 

to be appropriate and it is incumbent on both Responsible Authorities and 

applicants to assess any risks posed by the application bearing in mind the 

contents of this CIA to ensure that any representations that are made and/or 

conditions that are offered, requested or negotiated are sufficient and 

appropriate.  

 

1.10 In preparing and publishing this CIA regard has been given to the guidance 

 issued by the Secretary of State under section 182 of the Act. In particular the 

 Authority has consulted those persons and bodies as required by the 

guidance  and given proper weight to their views.  This Assessment also works 

alongside  existing Council strategies and priorities in relation to crime prevention, 

 regeneration, planning, transport, tourism, race equality and culture. 

 

 

1.11 Consultation on this Assessment took place between 16 July 2018 and 9 

September 2018.  
 

2) SUMMARY OF EVIDENCE  

2.1 GENERAL 

2.2 Evidence from Nottinghamshire Police and held within the Council shows 

 general trends across the City which supports arguments for both Saturation 

 Zones defined in this document. 

 

2.3 The City’s regional position makes it ideal for access by visitors.  Previous 

information documented in the Authority’s Statements of Licensing Policy 

noted a growth in the number of hotel rooms available in Nottingham and this 

has not reduced despite the current economic climate. The Council is keen to 

encourage a diverse range of premises catering for a wide range of age 

groups and uses.  Nottingham still attracts large numbers of people wanting 

to take part in its nightlife and adding to the numbers already present.  

Venues and event companies use websites and other methods to advertise to 

groups such as students,  Stag & Hen parties offering guides to which pubs 

and clubs to visit and which hotels to stay in.   Whilst this can be good for 

tourism it can also fuel tensions which already exist within the City. The City 

also has high profile entertainment venues such as the Motorpoint Arena, two 

Page 33



Nottingham CIAv7AMR  

6 
 

theatres, prominent sporting venues and excellent transport links by road, rail, 

tram and bus. It remains the region’s capital for entertainment attracting local 

residents, visitors from around the UK and internationally many of whom want 

to enjoy the City and its night time economy. 

2.4 Nottingham has two continually expanding universities currently attended by 

 approximately 60,000 students who swell the numbers of drinkers in the City, 

 especially during term time.  Student accommodation has increased (and is 

 forecast to continue to do so,) especially within the City Centre making it 

easier  for the growing number of students to take advantage of the offers of 

the City.  

2.5 The two Saturation Zones both contain student accommodation and abut 

 each other with migration routes between the two Zones. The effects of 

 preloading (where alcohol is purchased cheaply from off licences and 

 supermarkets and used for the purchaser to start to drink before entering 

 other licensed premises) is not unique to Nottingham but impacts on both 

 Saturation Zones as detailed below and evidenced in the fact that 

 homemade/decanted alcohol mix products were the most confiscated product 

 under the Citywide DPPO (AA2 appendix 2) 

2.6 Many licensed premises and particularly the larger venues target the student 

 market causing peaks in activity where demand is almost as busy on a 

 weekday from the effect of Student Nights and other promotions during term 

 time as it is at weekends. In addition a number of venues organise student 

 events which attract students from across the country using bespoke 

 transport such as coaches and also impacting the usual transportation 

 systems taking the students home again at the end of the night.   

2.7 Students impact on crime in a number of ways;  

 they are often a target for crime 

 Statistically, 18-30 year olds account for the majority of offenders (54%) 

and a high proportion of victims (over 48%) 

 A high proportion are immature drinkers, thus more markedly affected by 

alcohol; 

 Students are mostly in the 16-24 age group which already forms the 

majority of both the victims and perpetrators of alcohol related violence 

and disorder.  All of these factors increase the potential for crime and 

disorder; 

 Students are responsible for a high proportion of alcohol seizures, many 

of these taking place within the Lenton area of Nottingham which falls 

within the Berridge, Arboretum & Radford Saturation Zone. 

2.8 The presence of a large number of off licences in both Saturation Zones has 

 increased the prevalence of pre-loading, on street drinking and also the anti-

Page 34



Nottingham CIAv7AMR  

7 
 

 social behaviour associated with it. This has been reflected in an increase in 

 the number of alcohol confiscations made under the Designated Public 

 Places Order. 

2.9 Alcohol harm represents a significant burden to Nottingham City, not merely in 

relation to the health of its residents, but also in much wider terms. As part of 

the consultation on this CIA Public Health England advised that :- 

 alcohol misuse is the single biggest risk factor for early death and illness in 

people aged 15-49 years.  

 Approximately 70% of violent crime occurring at the weekend or in the 

evening is alcohol related, as are 70% of attendances at ED over the 

weekend period.  

 There is also a known relationship between alcohol and mental health, 

including risk of depression, bipolar disorder and personality disorder.  Just 

under half of users of community mental health services report problematic 

drug and/or alcohol use in the previous year.  

 The economic burden of alcohol-related harm is substantial: at a national 

level, alcohol is estimated to generate costs of £21bn a year, of which £11bn 

are costs associated with alcohol related crime, and £3.5bn with costs to the 

NHS. Rates of alcohol admissions in Nottingham City are higher than the 

national or regional average. 

 There is evidence to support the value of using licensing powers to help tackle 

alcohol harms, with greater use of such powers being linked to reductions in 

alcohol-related hospital admissions. This is reflected in national-level 

guidance from Public Health England. Cumulative Impact Zones can 

contribute directly to such an effect. They can also contribute indirectly, as 

their mere presence provides a prompt for people to consider the harms of 

alcohol. Conversely, their absence would help to normalise thinking around 

high alcohol outlet density and consumption.  

2.10 Whilst Public Health is not a licensing objective or a reason in itself to support 

the declaration of Cumulative Impact Zones it is clearly affected by alcohol 

consumption in general and by alcohol related violence which can form the 

basis for the declaration of Cumulative Impact Zones.  

2.11 Night Time Culture 

2.12 The Night Time Economy (NTE) can be split onto three time periods, each 

 one with its own dynamics and response requirements. 

2.13 Early Evening – 1900hrs to 2159hrs 

2.14 This period tends to be used for the purchase of cheap alcohol from off-

 licences, including major chains and supermarkets, with a view to purchasers 

Page 35



Nottingham CIAv7AMR  

8 
 

 consuming alcohol and potentially getting drunk before entering into the early 

 part of the night time economy. This “pre-loading” is not unique to Nottingham 

 but can make a huge difference to a night out in the City. The significant 

 number of off-licenced premises reflects and caters for this increase in 

 demand.  Whilst this phenomenon is thought to have caused a reduction in 

 the early evening incidents of crime and disorder in the City Centre Saturation 

 Zone (as patrons enter the City later in the evening having already consumed 

 a large amount of alcohol,)  it  appears to have the effect of increasing 

 violence later in the evening. 

 2.15 Night Time (NTE) – 2200hrs -0359hrs 

2.16 This time period sees the trend for violence to occur particularly in the City 

 Centre Saturation Zone as the footfall seems to slow down – either inside or 

 outside the premises.  With the influx of pre-loaders arriving in the City as late 

 as 2230hrs (and therefore staying later) to enjoy the facilities in the night time 

 economy and between 2200hrs and 0059hrs, the level of incidents rises to a 

 peak period between 0100hrs and 0359hrs. 

 

2.17 Early Morning period – 0400hrs – 0600hrs 

2.18 Between these hours the trend for crime and disorder moves back to the open 

 spaces.  People are wanting to exit the City whilst others still want entry to the 

 late night venues.  The infrastructure in this period is stretched for both Police 

 resources and transportation providers 

2.19 Public Transport  

2.20 As indicated above there is a trend for people to come into the City later and 

leave it later.  The infra-structure of the City is less able to cope with this 

transition and whilst the tram is an excellent transporter of large numbers of 

people the last tram out of the City is are around midnight and 1.00am.  The 

provision of late night buses is limited and offers a reduced capacity.  Large 

numbers of people require egress from the City and take advantage of the 

numerous taxi cabs and private hire offers, which can cause an over 

proliferation of vehicles in the City centre at night sparking alcohol fuelled 

incidents as customers seek to make their way home .   

3) SUMMARY OF EVIDENCE 

3.1 CITY CENTRE SATURATION ZONE 

3.2 The City Centre Saturation Zone is shown on the map in appendix 1 and 

relates to all premises selling or supplying alcohol for consumption either on 

or off the premises (or both). Whilst this figure will naturally fluctuate, at the 

time of publication this consists approximately 350 premises. 

Page 36



Nottingham CIAv7AMR  

9 
 

 

3.3 Crime & Disorder 

3.4 In 2004/5 when the Saturation Policy was first being considered Police 

 evidence showed that high levels of Crime and disorder were centred in the 

 Zone.  

3.5 Since that Saturation Policy was first introduced, the dynamics have changed 

 in that the number premises with a capacity of over 500 has fallen.  However, 

 even the lower capacity premises contribute to crime and disorder within the 

 City with a number of expedited reviews having been brought in respect of 

 premises with less than 500 capacity. 

3.6 Violent crime is statistically increasing.  In 2017/18 Nottingham maintained 

higher levels of violence at a rate of above 150 violent offences per month 

compared with 2016/17 where levels were consistently under 150 per month.  

Alcohol related violence shows similar trends with reporting figures over 60 as 

at March 2018 and less than 50 in March 2017.    

3.7 Saturday and Sunday between the hours of 00:00 and 06:00 saw the majority 

of violence for 2017/18 and the number of offences during this period was 

higher than any other.  Friday 00:00 to 06:00 and 18:01 to 23/59 also showed 

increased offence numbers, possibly influenced by the overlap of student 

night on Thursday evenings 

3.8 Drug offences were also higher in 2017/18, spiking in December 2017 with 

just over 70 offences a month during busy periods within the Early and Late 

Night Economy trading period. 

3.9 Anti-social behaviour 

3.10 Over a three year period, ASB has shown a transition in hotspots to the 

eastern side of the City Centre with figures of 250 and 400 incidents a month 

being recorded with an increase during the period 00:00 to 06:00 Saturday 

and Sunday. There is residential accommodation in this area and the ASB 

arises through excessive noise due to people being intoxicated and 

congregating in and around fast food outlets.  These premises then become 

flashpoints for ASB  and in comparison to other offence types, ASB appears 

more predominately late night refreshment premises.   

3.10 Anti-social behaviour (including vomiting and urinating) in the City Centre is a 

 regular occurrence especially at night and during the busy weekend period; 

 an increase in numbers of people going in to licensed premises may lead to 

 an increase in this problem. Litter is a regular problem including flyers and 

 tickets used to advertise clubs and drinks promotions.  

Page 37



Nottingham CIAv7AMR  

10 
 

3.11 The Respect for Nottingham Survey 2017 produced by the Crime & Drugs 

 Partnership highlights the concerns relating to Anti-social behaviour in 

 Nottingham as a whole with 35% of respondents agreeing that ‘people being 

 drunk or rowdy in public spaces’ as very big or fairly big problem with 31% 

 considered street drinking to also be a very big or fairly big problem. 

3.12 The same survey reported a reduction in the number of people who felt safe 

 in the City centre during dark and highlighted the main areas of concern to be 

 litter from vomiting, flyers, tickets and food containers, all a by-product of the 

 licensed trade or those who use it. 

3.13 The City Centre cleansing service operates 24 hours a day, however it 

 requires the opportunity to clean the streets between licensed premises 

 closing and the start of the next working day.  In particular the matters found 

 by the service include glass waste, street litter and litter from food vendors 

 and advertising of licensed premises and vomit and urine in the street and 

 alleyways. Staff attempting to deal with these problems frequently suffer 

 abuse and a risk to their health and safety from the behaviour of the 

 perpetrators - customers of licensed premises.   

3.14 Noise and public nuisance  
 
3.15 Public nuisance can encompass a range of behaviours and activities. 

3.16 The cumulative impact of noise is a serious concern particularly when pubs, 
 clubs and café-bars use loud music to attract customers, and when, as a 
 result of ‘smoke-free’ legislation, patrons congregate outside (or in the vicinity) 
 of a premises to smoke, where conversation and behaviour can also become 
 noisy and disturbing to residents in the vicinity.   
  
3.17 In the City Centre Saturation Zone many former commercial and industrial 
 premises have been converted to residential accommodation, licensed 
 premises or, in some buildings, a mixture of both. This can lead to complaints 
 as noise from premises, customers and passing revellers can prevent and 
 disturb the sleep of local residents. 
 
3.18 The mixture of city living and licensed premises within the Saturation Zone 
 can result in noise breakout from many things such as people on the street, 
 taxis and minicabs, music with bass content, street cleansing vehicles and the 
 emptying of bottles into skips. 
 
3.19 The Council’s Environmental Health and Safer Places team continues to 

receive and investigate complaints from residents and businesses about noise 

from premises and their customers and will take necessary action where it is 

possible to identify a  specific premises that is directly responsible for the 

problem. However, other than through CIAs there are no powers to restrict or 

address the general “throng” of cumulative noise arising from a concentration 

of premises and their customers as they move through the streets  

Page 38



Nottingham CIAv7AMR  

11 
 

 

4) SUMMARY OF EVIDENCE 

4.1 BERRIDGE, ARBORETUM, AND RADFORD SATURATION ZONE 

4.2 The Berridge, Arboretum & Radford Saturation Zone is shown on the map in 

 appendix 2 and relates only to those premises selling or supplying alcohol for 

 consumption off the premises. At the time of publication of this Assessment 

 consists a total of premises, 55 being off-licensed premises.  
 

4.3 Crime & Disorder 

4.4 This Saturation Zone was first introduced in 2014 and covers several areas 

with high indices of deprivation.  There are a number of properties operated 

by Framework, a charity and housing association dedicated to helping 

homeless people, preventing homelessness and promoting opportunities for 

vulnerable and excluded people, particularly around the Radford area. This 

charity works with thousands of people each year who are either homeless or 

at risk of homelessness including those with alcohol and drugs problems and 

offenders. This Saturation Zone houses a high concentration of persons with 

complex needs who can lapse into criminal and antisocial behaviour often 

linked to alcohol and its availability from the significant number of licensed 

premises in this Saturation Zone. The  consumption of alcohol in and around 

the Forest Recreation Ground area in general leads to an increase in ASB as 

the area has become a magnet for street drinkers with parents of local school 

children reporting incidents and concerns over street drinking. 

4.5 Evidence also suggests that street drinkers will sometimes travel to parts of 

 the Saturation Zone as they see it as an easy place to drink and access 

 alcohol. Concerns are regularly voiced by partners, communities, and local 

 residents and businesses in addition to the local police beat teams about the 

 number of licensed premises in the area. 
 

4.6 The Police note that there is a great deal of violent crime which is widespread 

across the proposed area concentrating around the afternoon and evening 

periods. 

4.7 Anti-Social Behaviour 

4.8 Alcohol related anti-social behaviour is a major concern within this Saturation 

 Zone linked to both the high concentration of off-licensed premises in the 

 area and the high numbers of students and vulnerable persons who live in the 

 area and are the customers of those premises. It is of particular note that, it 

Page 39



Nottingham CIAv7AMR  

12 
 

 has been necessary to use the ‘Community Trigger’ power introduced by the 

 ASB, Crime & Policing Act 2014 to tackle the increase in Anti-social 

 behaviour within this Saturation Zone. This power enables members of the 

 community who are aggrieved by the way in which on-going complaints of 

 ASB are being handled to require a multi-agency review of actions being 

 taken and here is seeking to address the conflict between the majority of 

 persons and families living in this saturation Zone who seek to live their lives  

 in positive and peaceful ways and the problems caused by the consumers of 

 alcohol within the area. 

4.9 Hotspots for street drinkers include children’s play areas with concerns 

 frequently raised by parents of children attending local schools regarding the 

 intimidating and general behaviour of street drinkers. This is reflected in the 

 high numbers of alcohol confiscations being made throughout the Zone with 

 299 being made by community protection officers alone in the year 1/4/17-

 31/3/18. Despite the creation of the Zone in 2014 an increase in alcohol 

 related detritus has been noted in the area over the last 2 years with 

 cleansing staff reporting large groups of street drinkers which intimidate both 

 them and residents.   

 

4.10 Overall robberies have increased year on year with the most likely time period 

to be late evening and early morning when often the victim’s themselves are 

under the influence of alcohol. 

 

4.11 Whilst only a small proportion of incidents took place at off-licences, the 

alcohol sold from them is known to be a very large contributor to many of the 

other calls received by the Police relating to this Zone. 

 

5) OTHER CONTROL MEASURES IN USE 

 

5.1 In preparing this Cumulative Impact Assessment regard has also been had to 

 other available control measures and Council Strategies and Policies. 

  

5.2 Planning Services  
 

5.3 Planning is based on the principles of sustainable development, regeneration 

 and social inclusion and in relation to the City centre seeks to ensure a balance 

 of uses to maintain its attractiveness and accessibility for the needs of all 

 sections of the community. Whilst the Planning and Licensing regimes are  

 separate they do share common themes with community safety and amenity 

Page 40



Nottingham CIAv7AMR  

13 
 

 (including protection from nuisance) being key considerations in the delivery of 

 an inclusive City and in the way planning applications are considered.  

5.4 The Local Planning Authority has a role in helping to manage the evening and 

 night-time economy in centres, taking account of and complementing the local 

 authority’s Statement of Licensing Policy and promotion of the licensing 

 objectives under the Licensing Act 2003. The relevant national legislation 

 governing development is the Town & Country Planning Act 1990, along with 

 The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 as amended and 

 The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 

 1995 as amended. The current Local Plan comprises the Nottingham City 

 Aligned Core Strategy (ACS)  and 'saved' policies and a proposals map, 

 which were adopted in November 2005. Work is currently underway to 

 prepare a new part 2 of the Local Plan to replace the saved policies document 

 namely the Nottingham City Land and Planning Policies (LAPP). It is 

 anticipated that the LAPP will be adopted in 2019. 

5.5 The City Centre Time and Place Plan and Land and Planning Policy Document  

 (LAPP) aims to enable and encourage distinct quarters in the City Centre that 

 can evolve over a period of time to meet different needs at different times of the 

 day and night. For example, large scale licensed premises may be more likely 

 to be acceptable in well designed new buildings in developable locations in the 

 Canal Quarter than in the retail core or the highly populated historic Castle 

 Quarter.   

5.6 Whilst Planning legislation grants the Council a degree of control over the 

 location and operation of new restaurants and drinking establishments within 

 retail centres and elsewhere, there is significantly less control available over the 

 development of off-licences and other retail premises which sell alcohol. Such 

 premises benefit from permitted development rights and are able to change use 

 without the need for express planning permission from the Authority. The scope 

 for control of off-licenses and other retail licensed premises is therefore limited 

 under planning legislation with, for example, newsagents or post offices being 

 converted into off-licences without any requirement for planning permission. 

 Similarly planning permission is not required to convert several other types of 

 high street uses, including redundant public houses, premises used for 

 Financial & Professional Services, Restaurants and  Cafés, and Drinking 

 Establishments to shops (and potentially off-licences) or supermarkets.  

5.7 Although the Licensing and Planning process are governed by separate and 

 distinct pieces of national legislation and local policies, both seek to provide  

 balanced, successful and inclusive retail centres and neighbourhoods, offering 

 safe and convenient services to the citizens of Nottingham. Successful co-

 ordination of these processes, with the assistance of all Responsible 

 Authorities, including Police and Fire services is increasingly being recognised 

Page 41



Nottingham CIAv7AMR  

14 
 

 as essential in the control of where such premises are located and how they 

 operate and should help reduce anti social behaviour and crime.  

5.8 It is the view of the Planning Authority that concentrations of licensed premises 

 including off licences give rise to problems of public disorder, noise, 

 disturbance and general anti social behaviour in the City centre. These issues 

 also affect adversely the perception of the City centre as a safe place to visit. It 

 is essential that the right balance is struck between the mixture of different 

 commercial and leisure related uses in the City centre and in particular to 

 minimise the concentrations of licensed premises.  It is recognised that large 

 licensed venues can give rise to particular problems of disorder, noise and 

 disturbance. This CIA therefore works alongside and compliments Planning 

 Policy addressing issues which are outside of Planning control.  

5.9 Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) 

5.10 Nottingham City Council’s local authority area is covered by Citywide PSPOs 

introduced in October 2017 for a period of 3 years and which were 

conversions from the former Designated Public Places Orders first introduced 

in 2005.  Under the PSPO offences are committed if a drinker does not stop 

drinking and hand over alcohol when asked to do so by an authorised officer. 

The PSPOs will be reviewed as they approach the end of their lifespan and 

can be extended if appropriate.  

5.11 Dispersal Powers 

5.12 Dispersal Powers under the Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 
 2014 provide extra powers for the Police direct persons to leave an area 
 where they their behaviour is causing a nuisance, harassment or distress. 
 Individuals can be moved out of the area and prohibited from returning for up 
 to 48 hours (unless they live in the area). 

5.13 Whilst the problems associated with Cumulative Impact are significant they 
 are often more transitory and by-products of the consumption of alcohol rather 
 than being caused by prolonged behaviour of identifiable individuals or 
 groups. This power is not therefore always a satisfactory response to the 
 issues caused  

5.14 Licensing Act 2003 

5.15 The Police and Responsible Authorities under this Act work with those 

 involved in alcohol licensed businesses as applications for new licences are 

 received or variation of existing licences are requested.  This can include 

 mediation around conditions required to ensure that the premises do not have 

 an adverse impact on the licensing objectives taking each application on its 

 merit. 

Page 42



Nottingham CIAv7AMR  

15 
 

5.16 Action is taken against premises which do not adhere to the terms and 

 conditions of their licence and include sanctions up to and including 

 revocation of a licence. 

5.17 Problem Licensed Premises Approach by Police 

5.18 Nottinghamshire Police actively promote statistical analysis of the crime and 

 disorder in and around licensed premises and work with those premises 

 which are highlighted as needing additional attention be that support with 

 initiatives such as metal detectors and breathalysers. These approaches are 

 used to address specific issues arising from identifiable premises but have 

 limited effect on issues of cumulative impact which by definition are caused 

 by the accumulated customers of a high concentration of premises and 

 cannot be attributed to a specific premise. 

5.19 Police Street Drinking Initiative 

5.20 This initiative involves proactive partnership working to tackle street drinking 

 problems following a rise in complaints from residents. 

 

5.21 Environmental Protection 

5.22 Whilst various powers exist to address statutory and other forms of nuisance 

 these once again are required to be focused on specific and identifiable 

 premises or individuals and cannot be used in relation to problems which 

 occur on the street. For this reason they are often not available to directly 

 address the issues caused by Cumulative Impact. 

5.23 City Centre Management  
 

5.24 In 2011 the Nottingham Retail BID was created to represent the interests of 

City Centre retail businesses. In total there are over 750 members in the BID 

area which pay an additional levy of 1.33% of their rateable value of their 

properties to raise a combined income of £840,000 per annum. The monies 

raised are used to fund a series of initiatives, projects and events which not 

only add to the vibrancy of the City but also support the licensed trade and 

address and assist with some of the crime and disorder and anti-social 

aspects arising from the night time economy.  Projects have included a taxi 

marshalling scheme funded by the Nottingham BID to maintain order in taxi 

queues and assist people to get home safely, the promotion of Best Bar None 

and Purple Flag schemes promoting Nottingham as safe City in which to 

Page 43



Nottingham CIAv7AMR  

16 
 

enjoy a night out. In addition Street Pastors are volunteers from local 

churches who patrol the City Centre every Friday and  Saturday night between 

10pm and 3am providing care, support and protection to those using the night 

time economy who may need assistance.    

5.25 The City Centre Locality Board was established in April 2012 in order to 

 identify partnership issues and concerns for the City Centre that can be 

 resolved and addressed through collective organisations. The group now 

 mirrors existing arrangements within our Neighbourhoods and contributes 

 towards the Area Working model. This group feeds in strategically to the CDP 

 Executive.  

6) Conclusions 

6.1 Despite the various other control measures taken into consideration above 

 the evidence provided in this Assessment, shows that Cumulative Impact in 

 both Zones is resulting in crime and disorder, antisocial behaviour, and public 

 nuisance including noise nuisance, litter and accumulations. These problems 

 are largely attributable to the significant concentration of alcohol licensed 

 premises in those Zones and their customers..  

6.2 The evidence provided shows that the Licensing Authority’s historic approach 

 in declaring these Saturation Zones and introducing policies to control the 

 number of premises licensed to operate within them has not acted as an 

 arbitrary restriction on trade but has acted as a proactive measure requiring 

 applications to be heavily scrutinised by both those making them and 

 considering them so as to ensure that the particular problems resulting from 

 Cumulative Impact are addressed and not increased. Bearing in mind this 

 history, the limits of other existing powers and the evidence provided the 

 Licensing Authority is satisfied that it still considers the number of Relevant 

 Authorisations in respect of:- 

 

1. Premises licensed to sell or supply alcohol for consumption both on and 

off the premises in the City Centre Saturation Zone, and  

2. Premises licensed to sell or supply alcohol for consumption off the 

premises  in the Berridge, Arboretum & Radford Saturation Zone is such 

that it is likely that it would be inconsistent with the Authority’s duty under 

section 4(1) of the Act to grant any further Relevant Authorisations in 

respect of premises of the relevant type in those Areas. 
 

Page 44



Nottingham CIAv7AMR  

17 
 

6.3 It is clear from the tables provided in Police evidence that the Authority’s 

previous Cumulative Impact Policies have  not been used inflexibly and that 

new applications are granted on a regular basis where appropriate.  It can 

also be seen that the Licensing Authority does not necessarily always agree 

with Responsible Authority objections and considers each application on its 

merits. 

6.4 This CIA is intended to  help highlight problems at source by supporting the 

 Authority’s Statement of Licensing Policy and those making, considering and 

 determining applications to ensure that only those premises with appropriate 

 control measures in place to address such issues and promote the licensing 

 objectives proceed. 

 

  

 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



City Centre Saturation Zone

CITY LINK

AB
BO

TS
FO

RD
 D

RI
VE

PEEL STREET

LENTON ROAD

NORTH
SHERWOOD

STREET ST ANN'S WAY

SHELTON STREET

ADDISON STREET

CLIFF ROAD

PEVERIL DRIVE

LONG ROW

WALKER STREET

CROCUS STREET

WEST
GATE

STREET

CRANMER STREET

STONE BRIDGE ROAD

ST ANN'S VALLE
Y

THE
R OPEWALK

PARK VALLEY

PA
RK

 RO
W

VIL
LA 

RO
AD

CASTLE ROAD

WI
ND

MI
LL

 LA
NE

HOPE 
DRIVE

TRAFFIC STREET

PARK TERRACE

DRYDEN
STRE ET

CASTLE GATE

SNEINTON HERMITAGE

STONEY STREET

ARBORETUM STREET

CASTLE MEADO W ROAD

ASTER

RO
AD

WOLLATON STREET

FRI
AR

LANE

BROOK STREET

GILL STREET

CHAUCER STREET

WOOLPACK LANE

CHURCH ROAD

HANDEL STREET
DAKEYNE STREET

ST MATTHIAS
ROAD

YORK STREET

BROAD STREET

REGENT STREET

GEORGE STREET

LEW
IS

CL
OS

E

K IN
G

ST
RE

ET

NEWARK STREET

RODEN STREET

HOUNDS GATE

HAMPDEN STREET

LACE W
AY

LAMARTINE STREET

ST
 AN

N'S
 HI

LL 
RO

AD

BLUE BELL HILL ROAD

TREN T
STR EET

AVENUE B

BARKER GATE

SELBORNE GARDENS

AVENUE A

CURZON STREET

PELHAM STREET

AVENUE C

COLVILLE STREET

BALMORAL ROAD

CARLTON STREET

HAMILTO
N DRIVE

LIS
T E

R
G A

T E

BE
AC

ON
 H

ILL
 R

IS
E

BRID LESMI TH
GATE

CLARENCE
STREET

RO
BI

N
HO

OD
ST

RE
ET

MO
UN

T S
TR

EE
T

CLUMBER STREET

CU
RZ

ON
 PL

AC
E

PEAS HILL ROAD

WE
ST

 ST
RE

ET

HUNTINGDON DRIVE

BOTTLE LANE

HE
SK

EY
 CL

OS
E

ANNESLEY GROVE

HA
YW

OO
D

ST
RE

ET

KEN
T S

TRE
ET

UNION ROAD

POPHAM STREET
RIC

K S
TR

EE
T

LIVINGSTONE ROAD

POPLAR STREET

TEAK CLOSE

COLLEGE STREET

WAT
KI

N S
TR

EE
T

WARSER GATE

ST PETER'S GATE

AS
HF

OR
TH

ST
RE

ET

PL
AN

TA
GE

NE
T S

TR
EE

T

ALFRED
STREET

SOUTH

ST CHAD'S ROAD

TULIP AVENUE

BURNHAM WAY

SOUTHAMPTON STREET

PILCHER GATE

CANAL ST RE
ET

HE
AT

HC
OA

T S
TR

EE
T

BLUECOAT CLOSE

CONWAY CLOSE

LIMM EN GARDENS

SHORT HILL

FORMAN STREET

K ENILW
ORTH ROAD

NO
TI

NT
ON

E S
TR

EE
T

ST JA
MES'S STREET SPANIEL ROW

DEAN STREET

ALFRED STREET NORTH

WEL
LIN

GT
ON

 ST
RE

ET

NEWARK CRESCENT

NELSON STREET

HO
WAR

D S
TR

EE
T

DENNETT CLOSE

EAST CIRCUS STREET

MALTMILL LANE

WRAY CLOSE

EA
ST

 S
TR

EE
T

WESTVILLE GARDENS

SEYMOUR STREET

LUTHER CLOSE

DANE CLOSE

TRINITY SQUARE

PEACHEY STREET

NORFOLK PLACE

CAMDEN CLOSE

PER
TH

 ST
RE

ET

FURZE GARDENS

ELLIS COURT

RIT
SO

N C
LO

SE

SH
AK

ES
PE

AR
E 

VI
LL

AS

ISABELLA STREET

CO
WA

N 
ST

RE
ET

NUGENT GARDENS

PEMBERTON STREET

STANHOPE STREET

MELVILLE STREET

MANSFIELD GROVE

DE
RB

Y S
TR

EE
T

WHARF ROAD

PALATINE STREET

PEEL STREET

HOUNDS GATE

CASTLE GATE

ST
ANN'S WELL

RO
AD

BATH
STREET

TALBOT STREET

SNEINTON ROAD

FOREST ROAD EAST

STATION STREET

CARRINGTON
STREET

MAPPER
LEY

ROAD

WEEKDAY CROSS
PENNYFOOT ST RE

ET

LONG ROW W EST

NIL
E S

TR
EET

A6008 MAID
MARIAN WAY

A60 HUNTINGDON STREET

A60 

A612 MANVERS
STREET

A6
00

8 W
ILF

OR
D 

RO
AD

A60 LONDON
ROAD

A6 008

A6008 QUEEN'S ROAD

A6008 HOCKLEY

Key L:\GIS\Projects\Cartography 2\001829- Saturation Zones Map With Listed Buildings\3. Final Outputs\Map documents\CityCentreSaturationZone.mxd. GIS Team - Kamrul Kashem. 19/06/2018

°0 210 420 metres© Crown copyright and database right 2018. Ordnance Survey Licence number 100019317.

Licenced premises for the sale and supply of alcohol
! Off Licence Only
! On Licence & On/Off Licence

Saturation Zone

Appendix 2

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Berridge, Arboretum and Radford Saturation Zone
HAYDN ROAD

RA
DF

OR
D

RO
AD

HARTLEY ROAD

NORTH GATE

TALBOT STREET

FOREST ROAD EAST

MAPP
ERL

EY
RO

AD

FO
RE

ST
RO

AD WEST

MAGDALA ROAD

ST
PE

TER'S
ST

RE
ET

BE
NTIN

CK
 ROAD

TRIUMPH ROAD

RADFORD
ROAD

A611
HUCKNALL ROAD

A6
51

4 WES
TE

RN
BO

ULE
VA

RD

A6200 DERBY ROAD

A6130 RADFORD BOULEVARD

A6130 GREGORY BOULEVARD

B682 SHERW
OOD RISE

A610 DERBY ROAD

B682 NOTTINGHAM ROAD

A60 HUNTINGDON STREET

A609 ILKESTON ROAD A610 WOLLATON STREET

A610 BOBBERS MILL BRIDGE

A60 

A6008

Key L:\GIS\Projects\Cartography 2\001829- Saturation Zones Map With Listed Buildings\3. Final Outputs\Map documents\ArbBerridgeRadfordSaturationZone.mxd. GIS Team - Kamrul Kashem. 19/06/2018

°0 280 560 metres© Crown copyright and database right 2018. Ordnance Survey Licence number 100019317.

Licenced premises for the sale and supply of alcohol
! Off Licences Only
! On Licence & On/Off Licence

Saturation Zone

Appendix 2

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



Mrs Angela Rawson 
Regional Licensing & Policy Manager 
Nottingham City Council 
Byron House 
Maid Marian Way 
Nottingham 
NG1 6HS 

18 May 2018 

Dear Mrs Rawson 

Cumulative Impact Assessment- Evidence 

City Area Licensing Team 
Nottinghamshire Police 

Central Police Station 
Byron House 

Maid Marian Way 
Nottingham 

NG16HS 

Tel 101 
Ext 310 0590 

I am the Neighbourhood Policing Inspector for the city centre and as such the current City 
Centre Cumulative Impact Zone (CIZ) and the policy fall within my area of responsibility. 

I am of the opinion that a cumulative impact assessment is both necessary and proportionate 
for the reasons outlined in the attached evidence. 

If I can be of any further assistance, please do not hesitate in contacting me. 

Yours sincerely 

p.p. lnsp 590 Anwaar Ahmed

NOTTINGHAMSHIRE 

POLICE 
PROUD TO SERVE 

APPENDIX 3

Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



APPENDIX 4

Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



APPENDIX 5

Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 6

Page 239



Page 240



APPENDIX 7 

 

STRATEGIES, POLICIES AND OTHER PUBLISHED DOCUMENTS GIVEN REGARD 

 

 The City Centre Time & Place Plan  

 

 Nottingham City Land & Planning Policy document (LAPP) 

 

 RESPECT FOR NOTTINGHAM SURVEY 2017 - Nottingham Crime & Drugs 

Partnership 

Page 241



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Cumulative Impact Assessment
	Responses to consultation
	Cumulative Impact Assessment
	City Centre Saturation Zone
	Berridge, Arbor, Radford Sat Zone
	Police Part 1
	Police Part 2
	Police Part 3
	Inspector Ahmed
	Inspector Wilson
	David Scothern
	Jenny Guiste
	Richard Taylor
	Other documents


